HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 1, 2010
1:40 p.m

1:40: 20 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting
to order at 1:40 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Representative Allan Austernman
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representative Anna Faircl ough
Represent ati ve Neal Foster
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative M ke Kelly

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

John Coan, Staff, Representative Bill Stoltze; Pet er
Ecklund, Staff, Representative Bill Thomas, Sponsor; Paul
Dick, Chief of Operations, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue; Mary MDowell, Vice President, Pacific Seafood
Processors Association; Geg Fisk, Bristol Bay Economc
Devel opnent Cor porati on.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Peter Macksey, Custoner Relations, SteelFab, Anchorage;
John Binkley, Chair, Board of Directors, Al aska Railroad
Cor poration, Fairbanks; Mark Stearns, Owner, Al aska Wod
Moul di ng, Inc., Anchorage; Bonne Wl dstad, Fairbanks; Terry
Smth, Chief Financial Oficer, Carlile Transportation
Systens, Anchorage; Mark Palner, President, QOcean Beauty

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Seaf oods; Bob Waldrop, Executive Director, Bristol Bay
Regi onal Seaf ood Devel opnent Association. Kris Nororsz,
Government Affairs, lcicle Seafoods, Petersburg.

SUMVARY
HB 344 SALMON PRCDUCT DEVELOP. TAX CREDI T

HB 344 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 357 AK RAI LROAD CORP. LAND SALES

HB 357 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb357
HOUSE BI LL NO. 357

"An Act relating to the sale of Iland owned by the
Alaska Railroad that is not needed for railroad
pur poses. "

1: 40: 48 PM

JOHN CQOAN, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE expl ai ned the
| egislation. He explained that HB 357 is an act giving the

Al aska Railroad Corporation the ability to sell land that
is not wused for railroad purposes. The bill does not
establish a method for the railroad to liquidate |and

assets or force the railroad to dispose of any |ease hold
interests. The legislation creates flexibility to sel
unneeded land. The bill received nunerous Iletters of
support from unhappy |easeholders that do not have the
ability to purchase the property they have inproved. The
letters were unsolicited and the I|ease holders are
reluctant to nmake new or additional inprovenents for fear
that they wll not be able to adjust their |ease or
purchase the property. The bill was designed to give a
voice to the | ease hol ders.

Representative Austerman understood that the |egislation

indicated that the railroad cannot sell land. Co-Chair
Stoltze concurred, but stated that a nore precise
definition wll be available during testinony from the

Al aska Railroad Corporation

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Representative Sal non asked if the legislation affected the
| and surrounding Nenana. Co-Chair Stoltze responded that
the legislation mght affect the nentioned area, but a
designated area is not mandated. The intent was not
geocentric, but instead affects the [Iandholding of the
whol e Al aska Rai | r oad.

Representative Salnon comented that the Alaska Railroad
owns the land surrounding the |oading dock in Nenana. He
referenced reports of the steep prices charged to maintain
and | ease the |land. He opined that the action constituted a
di sadvantage to the barge conmpany. Mich of the high |ease
rate is passed on to inhabitants of villages.

Representative Salnon stated concerns. He referenced that
other village entities having difficulty with the high
| ease paynents.

1:46: 32 PM

Co- Chai r Stoltze referred to other concerns raised
regarding the Alaska Railroad. The |egislation spurred many
simlar conments.

Representative Gara reported many questions about railroad
i ssues. He was concerned that the state allows the railroad
to control the land that they own. He expressed concern
about allowing the railroad to sell state |land and keep the
noney. He opined that the railroad m ght take what bel ongs
to the people and use the nobney for internal operations
that the legislature may or may not agree wth,

Co-Chair Stoltze opined that funds would not be eligible
for use without legislative intervention. He agreed that
problenms existed. He reported that the testinony would
provi de answers.

Representative Austerman viewed that the scenario is such
that the railroad has the ability to |ease the land at the
chosen rate. Co-Chair Stoltze concurred.

Representative Austernman pointed out that the railroad
already has the ability to use | ease noney for salaries.

Representative Gara communicated the limtation of short
term | eases as an advantage. Another benefit of the limted
| ease was that the state will eventually reclaim the |and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Wth the legislation, the railroad receives the nobney and
the state never sees the | and again.

Co-Chair Stoltze acknow edged the nmany questions associ ated
with the |egislation.

1: 51: 04 PM

PETER MACKSEY, CUSTOVER RELATI ONS, STEELFAB, ANCHORAGE (Vi a
tel econference), addressed Representative Gara's coment
and opined that the investnent nmade by sonme people would be
difficult if the state took the land back. He stated that
he felt confined by the railroad periodically raising the
rent. He commented that the nentioned property is wthout
rail and he believed that the railroad has no further use
for the land. A piece of property in Anchorage |eased under
the railroad is heavily taxed. He opined that with private
ownership, the investment and sense of wrth would be
greater. He announced that the railroad increases stress
levels with the steep | ease prices.

Representative Doogan requested nore detail on the
statenment "taxed as if own the land.”" M. Macksey responded
that he paid property taxes in addition to taxes for the
Cty of Anchorage.

Co-Chair Stoltze commented that the municipal of Anchorage
taxed airport property in a simlar nmanner.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked where the |land was | ocated. M.
Macksey replied Railroad Avenue.

1: 55: 51 PM

Representative Gara asked if M. Macksey realized that the
| and was owned by the railroad when he agreed to lease it.
M. Macksey responded that many of the | eases were 100 year
| eases and the original intent was to provide an industrial
base for Anchorage. He believed that the length of tine
that his conpany existed on the land warranted the option
to buy.

JOHN BI NKLEY, CHAIR, BOARD OF DI RECTORS, ALASKA RAILROAD
CORPORATI ON, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), commented that
the legislation highlighted the inportance of t he
rel ati onship between the |essees and the Al aska Railroad
Corporation. The real estate division of the Al aska

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Railroad Corporation is critical to the corporation's
success. The real estate division relies conpletely on the
revenue from the |essees. The steady revenue provided by
the lessees allows the corporation to succeed throughout
varyi ng busi ness cycl es.

M. Binkley shared that the board understands the need to
renew efforts to comunicate well wth the tenants. He
mentioned the railroad's fiduciary responsibility to the
sharehol ders of Alaska to treat |essees in an equal manner
and to receive a fair return on the asset value. He
stressed the inportance of ensuring that the people of
Al aska receive a fair return for the asset made on the
| eased | and.

2:00:22 PM

M. Binkley referred to a nechanism already in place to
release Alaska Railroad Corporation land wutilizing a
procedure to determ ne public purpose and report to the
| egi slature for advice. He believed the legislation would
refine the process.

Representative Austerman asked M. Binkley's stand on the
bill. M. Binkley reported that the railroad was "not
necessarily supportive” of the legislation. The board
believed that the nechanisnms were already in place in terns
of discharging land with the appropriate role of the
| egi slature. He repeated that the opinions of the |essees
were inportant to him

Representati ve Doogan asked how many |essees the railroad
had under contract. M. Binkley responded approximtely
250.

Representati ve Doogan asked for the annual basis incone.
M. Binkley replied approximately $9 m i on.

Representative Doogan queried the annual budget . M.
Bi nkl ey replied that the corporation had operating revenues
of $143 mllion or approximtely 7 percent.

Representative Gara referred to years of net inconme for
railroad from | easehol ds not operations; if that were true
he expressed concern about the |essening of |easehold
rental potential. He asked how long the corporation's net
i ncome has been attributable to its |easehold interest. M.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Bi nkl ey responded that the inconme goes up and down; in some
years the real estate is necessary to carry the corporation
through, in other years the corporation creates a return on
the operations of the railroad plus the real estate. The
rail road was experiencing tough tinmes because of |ess fuel
availability leading to a reduction in the bottomline.

2:05:26 PM

Representative Gara asked what the railroad was doing to
accompdat e | essees. He asked about any changes nmade by the
corporation regarding the treatnent and communication wth
| essees. M. Binkley responded that an inportant issue was
sound comunication with |essees to enable businesses to
succeed. He referred to the extension of |eases from 35
years to 55 years for increased stability.

Representative Gara asked if conpanies |ike Steel Fab woul d
| ose their inprovenments. M. Binkley hoped Steel Fab woul d
not; he wanted them to succeed and comended their
achi evenent s.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the purpose of the |egislation
was not to sell the land but instead to function like a
permanent fund within the railroad. The corporation would
use the earnings for their operations.

2: 09: 06 PM

Representative Salnon asked about the lease situation in
Nenana with the cost passed on to the village people. He
believed the l|egislation would change nothing. He wanted
action and not just talk.

Co-Chair Stoltze advocated for the bill, which will lead to
di scussi on and potentially change.

M. Binkley stated that the railroad is working wi th Nenana
to renew the lease. He discussed the history of the
railroad as part of the overall transportation system He
mentioned the process of renegotiating a | ease for the dock
properties. He reiterated pronmises to comrunicate better
with | essees and support their success.

Representative Austernman asked about a standard vyear

renegotiated contract or yearly fee. M. Binkley responded
that the corporation re-evaluates every five years and a

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



reappraisal is presented with a ceiling no greater than 35
per cent .

Representative Kelly queried the concerns of the railroad.

M. Binkley replied that the railroad does not want to sel

the real estate. He expressed concern regarding the
i mportance of the railroad' s success being tied to the real
estate. He nentioned that the railroad has operated as a
state owned entity for 25 years w thout annual requests for
operating funds. He pointed out that the state would suffer
the loss of the real estate even if the proceeds were

rei nvest ed. He noted that real estate is a great
investnment. He commented on the wsdom of the Al aska
Legi sl ature in est abl i shi ng t he Al aska Rai | r oad

Cor por ati on.

2:15: 27 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze comented that additional testinony for
the railroad woul d be organi zed by M. Binkl ey.

MARK STEARNS, OWNER, ALASKA WOOD MOULDI NG | NC., ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference) informed that he has been a |ease
hol der for ten years. He provided the history of increasing
| ease prices for his conpany. He discussed his experience
with changes in |ease terns w thout notice or discussion.
He understood that the railroad has a fiduciary
responsibility to maximze the benefit of their assets for
the shareholders. He understood the need to utilize the
property as a revenue source.

M. Stearns referred to other buildings in the area that
have been taken over by the railroad. He understood that
the noney earned fromthe sale of the land could be used as
a permanent fund; the railroad did not |ose the value. He
was concerned with a long-term ability to control expenses
for his business. The | ease has gone up dramatically, which
hurts the ability to reinvest in the business.

Representative Kelly pointed out that HB 357 would only
permt the railroad to sell the land if they chose to. He
asked how the bill would hel p.

M. Stearns explained that the nentioned property was not

used by the railroad. He believed that the property that he
| eases is not essential to the railroad' s operations. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



argued that if the railroad does not require land as an
essential part of their operation, then the sale of |and
woul d only strengthen the business clinate.

2:23:10 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed out that M . Bi nkl ey was
responsive to the needs of the | essees.

Representative Doogan asked about the nunicipality of
Anchorage's decision to tax |lessees. M. Stearns confirned
that he was taxed by the Minicipality of Anchorage for an
additional $6 thousand per year. He pointed out that his
conpany pays an additional $26 thousand in taxes each year
as a result of the changes instituted by the railroad.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked about the | ease rate increases.
He asked about the conmmunication wth the railroad
following the rate increase notices. M. Stearns responded
that he received the information "just because” and |isted
problenms that the railroad responded to by requesting a
letter. He stated that the danage has been done.

2:28:16 PM

Representative Kelly asked if property was sold during a
| ease expiration time, would inprovenent costs be required.
M. Stearns replied that the inprovenents on the property
bel ong to his business "fromthe ground up."”

Representative Kelly verified that the answer provided was
no. He asked if the corporation would own the inprovenents
if he did not renew his |lease. M. Stearns replied that the
corporation could own the inprovenments or they could
request or require that the i nprovenents were renoved.

BONNE  WOLDSTAD, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), had
concerns about the |egislation. She expressed that the bill
m ght solidify the inverse take that the railroad created
on her property in 2003 by repealing Sections 1208 and 1209
of the Alaska Railroad Transfer Act (ARTA). She explained
that she owned a honestead that predates the railroad. The
railroad received an exclusive wuse easenent on her
property. She expressed concern that the corporation m ght
sell her I and.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Co- Chai r Stoltze expressed a lack of under st andi ng
regarding the railroad transfer. M. Wldstad pointed out
that ARTA stated that if railroad track was unused for 18
years, then it would be declared vacant and revert back to
t he adj acent property owner.

2: 33:48 PM

Representative Kelly asked if a change in |anguage would
help to ensure that the bill did not negatively affect the
property. M. Wldstad responded that |anguage m ght be
inserted to recognize that if the railroad was to vacate
their easenment with a prior existing right, then the |and
woul d revert back to the adjacent property owner.

Representative Kelly commented that a | anguage change m ght

be difficult to achieve, as he was not the bill sponsor.
Ms. Wbl dstad thought that a | anguage change would alleviate
concerns that the bill is not intended to prejudice those

ownership rights.

Representative Fairclough asked if the easenent was passed,
was the honestead conpensated by the railroad. Ms. Wl dstad
stated that she had not found record of conpensation under
the original 1914 law. Followi ng changes in the original
Honestead Act of 1862, any future honestead had a clause
into patent for construction of railroad, telegraph, and
tel ephone lines. The territory had the right to traverse by
t he Honestead Act, but not to own.

Co-Chair Stoltze promsed to follow up on the issue.

TERRY SM TH, CHI EF FI NANCI AL OFFI CER, CARLI LE
TRANSPORTATI ON  SYSTEMS, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference)
stated that the railroad has been a good partner, but his
personal standpoint was that the anobunt of road controlled
by the railroad leads to scarcity. He added that |eased
land is not favored as collateral in lending situations. He
understood the value of land ownership for the railroad,
but for investors the preference is to reduce risk and gain
ownership to control destiny.

2:39:18 PM

Ms. Wl dstad comented on the fiduciary rights of the
state. She wished to comunicate the mnmaxi mum benefit by
considering the jobs provided by the | essees.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



2:40: 36 PM AT EASE
2:42: 33 PM RECONVENED

Representative Austerman asked how the railroad arrived at
8 percent. M. Binkley responded that 8 percent is the
corporation's policy with a couple of exceptions including
wat erfront |and.

Representative Austerman clarified that the action was
determined via board policy. M. Binkley concurred and
stated that the action was consistent for |eases around the
state. Many J|leases were initiated wunder the federa
government and rather than termnating the |eases, the
state allowed federal |eases to |apse under the terns and
conditions of the federal governnent. Many of the | eases
were a better deal for |easeholders than state system He
understood the shock when the federal |eases expired
pl aci ng them under the state system

Representative Austerman asked when nunicipalities of
Anchorage and Fairbanks initiated any adjustment on |eases
fromthe railroad. M. Binkley replied that there was not
an adjustnent by the railroad when the |essees paid the
addi tional anount for property taxes. Sonme |essees express
that the cost of the |ease can be expensed over a period of
time; from a tax standpoint, there 1is sonetines an
advant age to | easing.

2:46:21 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze suggested that this was the permssive
nature to be discussed between the governnent owner and the
| ease holder. He appreciated the discussion and the
testinmony fromthe Al aska Railroad Corporation.

Representative Austerman comented that he understood that
the |easing agreenent presents a good deal for the
railroad.

Co-Chair Stoltze agreed that the legislation provided a
perm ssive route for the Al aska Railroad Corporation.

HB 357 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

2:49:10 PM AT EASE

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



2:56:55 PM RECONVENED

#hb344
HOUSE BI LL NO. 344

"An Act relating to the sal non product devel opnent tax
credit; and providing for an effective date by
anending an effective date in sec. 7, ch. 57, SLA
2003, as anended by sec. 4, ch. 3, SLA 2006, and by
sec. 4, ch. 8, SLA 2008."

2:57: 05 PM

PETER ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOVAS, SPONSOR,
Vi ce-Chair Thomas delivered the sponsor statenent.

House Bill 344 extends the deadline for salnon
processors in Alaska to receive a salnon product
devel opnent tax credit. The program allows applicants

to claim a credit on their annual fisheries business
tax for 50% of the purchase <costs of eligible
equi pnment . Credits received may not exceed 50% of a
taxpayer’s annual tax liability. Under current | aw,
processors can claimthe credit for the property first
pl aced into service by Decenber 31, 2011. This bil
woul d extend the programi s sunset date to Decenber 31,
2015, allowi ng processors anple tinme to continue their
| ong-range investnent planning.

The sal non product devel opment tax credit was a key
reconmendati on  of the Joint Legi sl ative Sal non
| ndustry Task Force. First enacted in 2003, the
credit was part of an effort by Alaska s elected
| eaders and the fishing industry to devel op innovative
val ue- added sal non products. Since then it has
stinul at ed somne i mport ant changes in Al aska’ s
commercial fishing industry. New processing equi pnent
eligible for the tax credit enables businesses to
offer a nore diverse conplenment of Alaska salnon

products which helps increase overall cust oner
accept ance. Modern equi pnent also helps increase
efficiency of processing operations and inproves
output, mneaning that quality has inproved. This tax

credit also encourages in-state processing of our
sal non resource which is critical to job creation and
retention in fishing communities.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Al though Alaska’'s salnon industry is beginning to
recover from years of |ow values caused by factors
such as conpetition from fish farmng, the industry
continues to be challenged by the recent economc
depression, changes in the marketplace, and increasing
| abor and energy costs. Extending the tax credit
beyond its current sunset date of Decenber 31, 2011
will allow the industry to continue the progress that
is being made in developing and producing salnon
products that will keep Alaska’s fisheries conpetitive
in world markets. The state should continue to
support one of our nost inportant basic industries by
extending the salnon product developnment tax credit
t hought passage of HB 344.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas MOVED to ADOPT Wirk Draft (26-LS1473\E
Kane, 3/11/10) as a working docunent. Co-Chair Stoltze
OBJECTED.

M. Ecklund noted that the fisheries commttee added
qualified ice-nmaking systens to the initial |egislation. He
stated that he worked with Departnent of Revenue (DOR) who
adm nisters the programto clarify that ice-naking nmachines
woul d qualify for the tax credit.

3:01: 32 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze queried how ice nachines fit into
t echnol ogi cal advances. M. Ecklund responded that chilled
fish are required to produce a quality product. The
fisheries commttee believed that encouraging investnment in
ice machines would help preserve the value of the base
pr oduct .

Co-Chair Stoltze comented on the necessity of the
| egi sl ati on.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas responded that ice-nmaking products are
lacking in the state. The demand for quality fish demands
additional ice. He added that Bristol Bay has been behind
the times in this area. The need to keep the fish chilled
for value-added products is high. Co- Chai r Stoltze
clarified that he did not feel negatively about the
| egi sl ation, but encouraged open-m ndedness.

Representative Doogan clarified that the state would cover
a portion of the cost through tax credits, with the theory

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



that better fish would be the result. He asked who benefits
from the higher quality fish. Vice-Chair Thomas responded
that the ice machines are |ocated at the cannery or on a
barge. The boats visit the cannery or barge to collect the
ice, two tons at a tinme. He stated that everyone benefits
fromthe ice and the higher quality fish

3:07:54 PM

Representative Doogan asked about the size of the ice
machi nes. Vi ce-Chair Thonmas responded yes, the ice machines
create 25-30 tons of ice per day. Many canneries require a
| arge anount of ice. Representative Doogan guessed that the
commercial ice machines were nuch larger than those needed
for personal use. Vice-Chair Thomas agreed.

Representative Austerman clarified that the fishing boat
does not receive credit for the ice machine. The incentive
was for the processing industry to allow the fishernen to
get a better price for the fish and allows for greater flow
of noney through the state. It was the processing industry
who pays the fishery business tax that received the credit.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if an industry standard exists for
the cost of the ice.

Vice-Chair Thomas responded that the policy depends on
whet her the boats fish for the processing conpany. He added
that the ice is normally given away. Language in the bil
prohibits the industry fromselling ice for three years.

Co-Chair Stoltze requested further clarification. \V/ g
Eckl und responded that the issue of selling the ice was not
as inportant as the tracking of the value of the fished
processed as a result of the ice from the said ice
machines. |If a processor receives a credit from an ice
machine, the ice can only be given or sold to people who
fish for you to allow for tracking the value-added
processing for the fish.

Vice-Chair Thonmas pointed out that two pounds of ice are
required to chill one pound of fish.

3:11: 28 PM

M. Ecklund explained that the current tax credit 1is
wor king. He comented on the Alaska Tax D vision Report

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



(copy on file) for FY 2007-2009 showing that the total tax
received by the state has increased from $29 to $42
mllion. The tax credit is not responsible for the entire
i ncrease, but it has hel ped.

Representative Sal non asked why the ice contributes to the
added-val ue label for the fish. M. Ecklund responded that
there is a list of qualified and non qualified expenditures
that explains changes in the industry, primarily wth
i ncentivizing val ue-added products.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas added the incentive of retaining jobs in
Al aska versus exporting them

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed out that the discussion is based
on a policy issue and the CS has yet to be adopt ed.

M. Ecklund agreed and noted that the prior comrttee felt
strongly about ice nachines.

Representative Fairclough pointed out that the revenue book
does not match the provi ded dat a.

M. Ecklund requested testinony from the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR )

3:15: 05 PM

PAUL DI CK, CH EF OF OPERATI ONS, TAX DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE addressed the technical question.

Representative Fairclough restated her question from page
51 of the 2009 Revenue Sources Book which illustrates
nunbers that vary from the docunment provided in the
committee packet.

M. Dick explained that the Revenue Source Book includes
all taxes on fisheries, including salnon enhancenent tax
revenue, diving, and other types of seafood marketing. He
offered to provide the required breakdown from the Revenue
Sour ces Book.

Representative Fairclough explained her process in finding
the information and asked if the percentage was
proportional of the nunicipal share. Vice-Chair Thonas
stated 50 percent.

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



M. Dick Figure added that the Revenue Sources Book does
show 50 percent of the tax.

Representative Fairclough agreed to review the data |ater
with M. Dick.

Representati ve Doogan asked about the inclusion of ice
machi nes.

M. Dick responded that the ice nmachines would provide
benefits to industry, but he was unable to comment on the
policy call.

3:19: 23 PM

Representati ve Doogan added that ice machines used to be
specifically excluded and he wondered about a potential
change in circunstances that changed the nature of their
use enough to affect the decision. He believed that the
fisheries conmttee suggested adding the ice nmachines.

Co- Chai r Stoltze asked about depart nment al concerns
regarding the ice machines. M. Dyck replied that the
concerns regar ded t echni cal changes regar di ng t he

definition of qualified investnent. The ice nachines were
included with processing equi pnent and the ice machi ne does
not in fact "process."

Representative Salnon asked if the commttee was adding
added-value to the list. Co-Chair Stoltze added that the
commttee is "doing it because we can.™

Vi ce-Chair Thonmas suggested that the list is an ol der one.
He repeated that covering the fish with ice increases the
value and allows Alaska to conpete on an international
|l evel. He stated that he did not know why the ice machines
were not a priority before. The trend in Bristol Bay is
nmoving toward iced fish

3:23:32 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze suggested that the processors in Cook
I nl et and in Sout heast Al aska al ready had ice machi nes.

Representative Austerman added that farned fish entered the

mar ket place a few years ago. The process used to get the
farmed fish to market with a shelf life was to ice the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



fish. If fish is not iced, then one to two days of shelf
life are lost. He pointed out that the value is in the
freshness of the fish. As Alaska began to conpete wth
farmed fish the ice helped. Ten years ago, ice nachines
were not the issue. He agreed Bristol Bay a hard place to
fish and ice machi nes are necessary.

Representative Fairclough agreed that the case was well
made for ice machines, she supported the underlying issue.
She wished to ensure that the fiscal note reflects the
added ice nmachines. M. D ck responded that DOR has not
considered the work draft in the creation of the fiscal
not e.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the change in the fiscal note

will be substantive. M. Dick did not believe so. He
expl ai ned that the departnent observed the |ast three years
of credits to create an average of $2.4 mllion. He was
unaware of the exact fluctuation of investnents. He

anticipated a continued $2.4 mllion.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the ice machines wll then
conpete with the other technology investnments. M. Dick
responded yes.

Represent ative Fairclough asked about average costs for ice
maker for heavy-production as well as the life-expectancy
of the ice machine, once purchased.

3:27:27 PM

MARY MCDOWELL, VICE PRESIDENT, PAC FIC SEAFOOD PROCESSORS
ASSCCI ATI ON  spoke strongly in support of HB 344. She
stressed that the tax credit will allow the industry to
keep pace with consuner demands on tough world markets. She
referred to letters in the packet regarding the targeted
pr ogr am She stated that conpanies are faced wth
chall enges and those in rural areas are faced with high
energy and transportation costs. She declared that this was
an inportant tinme for Alaska to support the investnment with
the additional economc incentive. The tax credit pays for
a small portion of the required product investnent.

Ms. MDowell continued that fine narket niches raise the

val ue of the salnmobn which benefit the fishernen,
communities, the processors and the state coffers.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze asked if there was concern about the
anmendrment and the ice nachines. Ms. MDowel|l answered no.
She thought the anmendnent served as a good addition to the
bill. She agreed that icing fish allows for a high quality
itemto snoke or can.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about ice machines and the cost of
diesel to power the machine. He asked if the fuel was
covered in the tax credit. Ms. MDowel| responded no.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked why conpanies are not investing
in ice machines if they are a good deal both in terns of
product and incone derived.

3:32:58 PM

GREG FI SK, BRI STOL BAY ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT CORPORATI ON
responded that the installed cost per production ton of ice
machi nes is approximately $12,000 to $18,000. A ten-ton ice
machine costs approximately $180 thousand. He also
responded to the question about the timng of policy
change. He explained that the tax credit has proved hel pful
for those wshing to make investnents in value-added
equi pnent. The findings were that high quality fish are not
avai l abl e particularly in Bri st ol Bay. The state
incentivized the purchases, but full value is not achieved
wi t hout enough nunber one quality fish.

MARK  PALMER, PRESI DENT, OCEAN BEAUTY SEAFOODS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the legislation. He
expl ained that Ocean Beauty Seafoods has added a val ue-
added line, increasing enploynent and production capacity
as a result of the legislation. Oten the freezing capacity
of a facility mght be the bottleneck, can nove through a
ot nore volunme capacity an issue peak tinmes across the
state. The legislation has accelerated investnent due to
the incentive.

Representative Fairclough asked the anmount of fish tax paid
by Ocean Beauty Seaf oods.

M. Palmer responded that the conpany's fish tax totals an
average around $1.2 nmillion. The conpany has taken
advantage of $600 thousand of the value added processing
tax credit. He offered to provide nore detail.

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Representative Fairclough stated that she was interested in
the percentage of the «credit that the conpany took
advant age. She understood that 50 percent of the conpany's
liability to state is returned in the form of credits. M.
Palmer replied that 50 percent is the maxinmum anount
avai l able. The bill allows for carry-over of the credit.

Representative Fairclough asked if the carry-over option
was a new addition to the bill.

3:39:26 PM

M. Palnmer responded that the conpany has a certain period
of time follow ng the investnment to carry-over.

M. Palnmer pointed out that shore plants are not the only
ones that lack ice capacity. The fleet is wdespread in
Bristol Bay. Sone of the ice capacity would exist on
tenders. lce is occasionally transported a great distance.
A thousand permts exist in Bristol Bay w thout
refrigeration capacity on board their vessels. Loca
fishermen can only participate in premium program if they
have ability to chill the fish

3:42:19 PM

Representative Austerman asked for an estimate of anount
invested in val ue-added fisheries over past five years and
how much based on tax credit ability. M. Palnmer responded
that the conpany invested in excess of $2 mllion each
season in increasing capabilities for val ue-added products.

Co-Chair Stoltze disclosed that he served wth M. Pal ner
as a nenber of the Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute
hel ping to advance the marketing of Alaska Seafood
product s.

BOB WALDRORP, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, BRI STOL BAY REG ONAL
SEAFOOD DEVELOPMENT ASSOCI ATION (via tel econference), spoke
strongly in support of HB 344. He stated that the nost
val uable salnon fishery in the world is rising sharply.
Filet production in Bristol Bay increased by over 18
percent between 2008 and 2009 to 21 mllion pounds. He
expected to see the trend continue as a result of the tax
credit. He expressed hope that the commttee would approve
the nodest expansion of the tax credit to include ice
making. lce is a necessary condition for higher value

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



products. Higher value leads to higher prices upon which
the fishery's business tax and fishernen's incone is based.
He nmentioned the suffering market in Chile.

3:47:20 PM

Represent ati ve Doogan asked about the change in phil osophy
regarding the qualification of ice nachines as expenditures
when in the past they were considered non-qualified
expenditures. M. Wildrop believed that the tax credit
stinmulated the growth of val ue-added equi prent and now nust
catch up by allowi ng better fish access to that equipnent.

Representative Doogan referred to long |Ilist of non-
qualified expenditures including ice nmachines. Asked how
many other things not currently listed as qualified
expenditures will get noved to qualified list as tinme goes
on.

Representati ve Doogan wanted to know whether additional
pi eces of the equipnent wll be noved over to the list of
qual i fied expenditures, which will ultimately increase the
expense to the state. M. Waldrop did not believe that the
inclusion of the ice nmachines qualified as "m ssion creep"
but that the original mssion of the legislation was too
narrow. The Bristol Bay Regional Seafood Devel opnent
Association has invested $300,000 to $400,000 into ice
maki ng equi prent .

3:51: 51 PM

Representative Austerman noted that the equipnent list is
ten years old and he did not think one change in ten years
signal ed danger. He enphasized that the benefits of ice
machi nes had been discussed in conmttee for years.

KRIS  NORORSZ, GOVERNVENT  AFFAI RS, | Cl CLE  SEAFQODS,
PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified in support of
the bill. She explained that her conpany purchased and

processed sal non throughout Al aska and has utilized the tax
credit to purchase equipnent, further diversify the product
line, inprove quality and prolong product viability. She
descri bed the various equipnment purchased to prolong the
shelf life of the sal non.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



Vice-Chair Thonmas closed public testinony. He asked DOR
about the fiscal note. M. Dick responded that the fisca
note woul d not change with the added anendnents.

Representative Fairclough asked if the «credits carry
forward. M. Dick answered that the provision to carry-over
for three years after the tax year has always existed in
the legislation. He added that HB 344 sinply extends the
carry over provision end-date.

Representative Fairclough asked for nore information about
the carry-over. She asked how the carry-over functions if a
person purchases a piece of equipnent for $1 million and is
able to declare up to $500 thousand. M. Dick responded
$100,000 tax liability, could use $50,000 and then carry
over the remainder of the investnent to the subsequent tax
years, for four years.

Representative Fairclough clarified that the provision
existed in the current legislation. M. D ck responded yes.

Representati ve Fairclough asked about the life-cycle of new
equi pnent provided for as a credit. She requested a cost
anal ysis regarding the paynment schedule for the equipnent.
M. Dick deferred to the industry for an answer.

M. Fisk answered that the typical |ife expectancy for an
i ce plant woul d be approxi mately 20-30 years.

3:58: 20 PM

Representative Foster stated support for the I|egislation.
He believed that help for the rural, western, and
i npoverished comunities was always a step in the right
di rection.

HB 344 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

3:59:37 PM

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:59 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



House Fi nance Committee 21 04/01/10 1:40 P. M



